
DESERT WATER AGENCY           BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 2, 2018                                                                                     REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
   REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 

2. NEW EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTIONS  KRAUSE 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  September 18, 2018  CIOFFI  
                                                       

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

5. COMMITTEE REPORTS -    A. Executive – September 25, 2018  CIOFFI 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public may speak on any item listed on the agenda 
as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on 
items not listed on the agenda.                                                                           

 

7. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT – AUGUST  BLOOMER 
 

8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
A.  State Water Contractor’s Meeting – September 12, 2018  RIDDELL 
B.  Director’s Report on CSDA Conference                                                                                BLOOMER, CIOFFI, STUART 

 

9. OUTREACH & CONSERVATION  METZGER 
  A.  Media Information 
  B. Activities 
 

10. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 
11. CLOSED SESSION 
  

A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
      Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
     Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
     Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
   Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 

Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
   Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
   Name of Case: Albrecht et al vs. County of Riverside 
 

E.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Abbey et al vs. County of Riverside 
 
   F.   CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION       
   Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1)  
         Name of Case: Safari Park, Inc. vs. Southridge Property Owners Assoc. of Palm Springs, et al 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DWA Board Agenda 
10/02/18 
Page 2 

 
 

 G. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: Conveyance of Easement APN No. 508-053-005 to Desert Water Agency 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: DWA and Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians 
  Under Negotiation: Terms 

 

12. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

13. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable 
arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members, which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



2 
 

Desert Water Agency 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

October 2, 2018 
 

The following employees are scheduled to attend and be introduced to the 
Board of Directors at the October 2, 2018 Board Meeting: 

 
Name 

 
Date Employed 

 
Classification/Department 

 
Kevin Raust 

 
 
 

 
March 12, 2018 

 
Equipment 

Operator/Construction 

 
Eduardo 
Calderon 

 
 

 
March 13, 2018 

 
Equipment 

Operator/Construction 

 
Ian Morales 

 
 

 
April 6, 2018 Water Service Worker 

I/Construction 

 



       8939 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/18/18 

   MINUTES    
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

September 18, 2018 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
          Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President                    ) 
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  
Absent: Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Cons. Mgr. ) 
 Esther Saenz, Accounting Supervisor ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. ) 
 Donna Poyuzina, Desert Hot Springs resident ) 
 Greta Carter, Desert Hot Springs resident ) 
 Estela Rojas, Desert Hot Springs resident ) 
                                  

Attendance 

18212.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
   
18213.  President Cioffi called for approval of the August 21, 2018 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
   
  Director Oygar moved for approval.  After a second by 
Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer, the minutes were approved as written (Vice 
President Stuart abstained due to his absence, Director Ewing absent). 
 
18214.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on August 21 at approximately 4:00 p.m., 
Construction staff responded to a hit fire hydrant on Hermosa Drive. They 
were able to change the bolts and gasket and put it back in service. The water 
loss was from a fully open 6-inch fire hydrant bury which ran for 
approximately 20 minutes. A police report was filed. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 08/21/18 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report  
 
 
 
Hit Fire Hydrant -
Hermosa Drive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 



       8940 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/18/18 

  Mr. Krause stated on August 24 at approximately 9:00 p.m., 
Construction staff responded to a hit fire hydrant on Ave. Lalo Guerrero. 
They were able to replace the gasket and bolts and put it back in service. The 
water loss was from a fully open hydrant bury which ran for approximately 
25 minutes. An incident report was filed. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on September 4 at approximately 6:45 a.m., 
Construction staff responded to a hit air vac at the south end of Barona Rd. 
The air vac is on reclaimed water and was placed out of service for repairs. 
The water loss was from a one-inch opening, which ran for approximately 45 
minutes. A police report was filed. 
 
  Continuing with his report, Mr. Krause explained that the 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) is still reviewing the Agency’s 2015 
UWMP and have identified portions of the plan requiring additional updates. 
The primary change revolves around the Agency’s population served. DWR 
did not accept the methodology for determining population, which included 
seasonal resident’s estimation. The changes will affect several tables with the 
UWMP and will require the Agency to reassess its 20 by 2020 (SBx7-7) 
progress. It will also impact the gallons per capita per day figures. Once the 
updates are complete, staff will bring the revised plan, technical memo and 
summary changes to the Board of Directors for a public hearing and adoption. 
This is anticipated to be completed by the end of this year. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted on National Read a Book Day (September 
6), a display of water themed books were available at the Palm Springs Public 
Library. The Agency also provided bookmarks, reusable water bottles and 
brochures to the library for distribution. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated as part of routine maintenance, it was 
determined that the relays which control/protect the hydro plant needed to be 
replaced. The plant was shut down for the new installation on August 27 and 
completed on September 6. The final project cost was $143,000. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated for the month of August, the Whitewater 
Hydro plant generated approximately 489,670 kWh, resulting in a SCE 
settlement amount of $45,306. As of the end of July, MWD has delivered 
approximately 64,970 acre-feet to the Whitewater Spreading Basin and 383 
acre-feet to the Mission Creek Spreading Basin. MWD will complete a meter 
repair by the end of September. Once complete, approximately 1,660 acre-
feet will be delivered to the Mission Creek Spreading Basin. Approximately 
53,000 acre-feet is still scheduled to be delivered to Whitewater Spreading 
Basin by the end of the year. 
 
  Mr. Krause announced that during routine sewer maintenance, 
it was discovered that the manhole at the intersection of Lincoln Ave. and 
Taft in the Tramview Mobile Home Park was deteriorating due to corrosive 
sewer gases. The replacement manhole is made out of polymer resin. The 

GM Report 
(Cont.) 
Hit Fire Hydrant – Ave. 
Lalo Guerrero 
 
 
 
 
 
Hit Air Vac – Barona 
Rd. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2015 Urban Water 
Management Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Palm Springs Library 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Whitewater 
Hydroelectric Plant 
 
 
 
 
 
Whitewater Hydro and 
SWP Delivery Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lincoln Avenue 
Manhole Replacement 
 
 
 
 



       8941 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/18/18 

Agency budgeted $81,500. The total project cost was $72,000. The design 
was done in-house by Engineering staff and the project completed on August 
16. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted the current system 
leak data, and meetings and activities he participated in during the past 
several weeks.      
 
18215.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the August 29 and 
September 13, 2018 Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
 
  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the September 5, 2018 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
 
18216.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public comment. 
   
  Donna Poyuzina, Greta Carter and Estela Rojas, Desert Hot 
Springs residents expressed concern that Mission Springs Water District 
found it necessary to sue DWA in order to compel the Agency to begin 
replenishing the Mission Creek Subbasin and that the Agency is trying to 
take their water and their water rights. 
 
  There being no one else from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period.  
 
18217.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to 
present staff’s request to continue participation in the USGS Cooperative 
Water Resources program. 
 
  Mr. Johnson explained as in past years, the Agency along with 
Coachella Valley Water District, Riverside County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (Agencies) and USGS will share the costs for the 
operation and maintenance of stream gauging, as well as ground and surface 
water quality program. The cost share ratio remains at 60/40 between the 
Agencies and USGS, with USGS paying 40 percent. 
 
  Mr. Johnson noted there is a 4.5% increase over last year. Staff 
wishes to continue participation in the program, thereby, requesting  approval 
of the Agency’s participation in the 2018-19 program in the amount of 
$88,090. 
 
  Director Oygar made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. Vice President Stuart seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously (Director Ewing absent). 
 

GM Report 
(Cont.) 
Lincoln Manhole 
Replacement 
 
 
System Leak Data,  
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities  
 
 
Committee Reports: 
Executive 08/29/18 & 
09/13/18 
 
 
 
Conserv. & Public 
Affairs 09/05/18 
 
 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
 
Donna Poyuzina 
Greta Carter 
Estela Rojas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action Item: 
Request Auth. to 
Participate in 2018/19 
USGS Program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8942 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/18/18 

18218.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of July 2018. 
 
   Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating Fund 
received $3,010,435 in Water Sales Revenue, $186,978 in Reclamation Sales 
Revenue and $75,092 in Work Order Deposits. $4,977,049 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. There were 22,616 active services as of July 31, 2018, 
compared to 22,613 as of June 30, 2018. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$441,000 was received in Property Tax Revenue, $328,302 in Groundwater 
Assessments from private pumpers, and $370,407 from CVWD for the 2017 
Water Management Agreement. $3,065,300 was paid out in State Water 
Project charges. 
 
  Reporting on the Wastewater Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$7,979 was received in Sewer Capacity Charges. There are a total of 44 
sewer contracts, with total delinquents of 13 (30%). $76,228 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. 
 
18219.  President Cioffi asked Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Metzger to provide a report on the August water use reduction figures. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 17% reduction in potable water production during August 2018 
compared to August 2013. The cumulative savings over the last twelve-
month period is 14.1%.  
   
18220.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included Outreach & 
Conservation reports for August. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger announced the following upcoming events: 1) 
October 2, National Nite Out - Palm Springs Police Department, 2) October 
5, Mizell Senior Expo; and  3) October 10, MSWD Solar Event. 
 
18221.  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer requested additional water filling 
stations be placed at Palm Springs High School. 
 
   Agency Counsel Riddell expressed concern over false 
allegations made by today’s speakers during Public Comment. Mr. Riddell 
stated that DWA was delivering imported water to the Mission Creek 
Subbasin when Mission Springs Water District sued the Agency to stop those 
deliveries. He added that DWA has not taken any water or water rights from 
Desert Hot Springs residents, and he expressed concern about a 
misinformation campaign in Desert Hot Springs involving statements that 
simply are not true. 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (July) 
 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
August Water Use 
Figures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Outreach & 
Conservation - August 
 
 
 
Upcoming Events 
 
 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
Agency Counsel 
Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8943 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/18/18 

  Director Oygar, Vice President Stuart and President Cioffi also 
expressed their concern over the circulation of misinformation. 
 
18222.  At 9:00 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session for 
the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District 
vs. Desert Water Agency, (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54959.9 (d) (1), Albrecht et al vs. County of Riverside; (E) 
Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54959.9 (d) (1), 
Abbey et al vs. County of Riverside; and (F) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Safari Park, Inc. vs. Southridge 
Property Owners Association of Palm Springs, et al.   
 
18223.  At 10:41 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
18224.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 10:42 a.m. 
      ___________________________                                                           
      James Cioffi,  President 
ATTEST: 
_____________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Director Comments 
(Cont.) 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C.  Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
D. Existing Litigation – 
Albrecht et al vs. 
Riverside County 
E. Existing Litigation – 
Abbey et al vs. 
Riverside County 
F. Existing Litigation – 
Safari Park, Inc. vs. 
Southridge Property 
Owners Assoc. of Palm 
Springs, et al 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment  

 



 4 

Page 1 of 5 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
OCTOBER 2, 2018 

Surface Water Filtration Avoidance Inspection Update 

Each year, the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water (Division), conducts 
an annual site inspection of the Agency’s surface water facilities and source intakes, to include water 
quality data analysis from the surface water sources. 

On December 7, 2017, the state representative, along with Operations Engineer David Tate 
performed the inspection. On September 12, 2018, the Agency received the official inspection report 
for the December 2017 inspection. The report indicated that the Agency continues to maintain an 
effective watershed control program for the Chino and Falls Creek watersheds; however, due to 
illegal activities that continue to occur with the Snow Creek watershed, the Snow Creek water source 
violated a treatment technique for a seven-month period and therefore no longer meets the criteria 
for filter avoidance. The Agency will be required to report this treatment technique violation on next 
year’s Consumer Confidence Report. As a result of this determination, the Agency will be required 
to filter the Snow Creek surface water before distributing to the potable system. Per the current 
regulations, the Agency will have 18 months to design and construct a filtration system for the Snow 
Creek surface water.   

Staff anticipated that the Division may require filtration and therefore budgeted $2.3 million for 
filtration facilities. Agency engineering has been working with Krieger & Stewart on a filter facility 
design, with the facilities located on the Snow Creek Hydro Plant property. The proposed filtration 
system will allow the Agency to filter all of the water for the Snow Creek Village service area. Staff 
anticipates the filtration system will be operational by the end of January 2020. 



Page 2 of 5 

Lead Testing at School Sites 

In 2017, the State Water Board’s Division of Drinking Water required agencies to test water samples 
from drinking fountains and fixtures for lead all K-12 schools upon a school or district’s request. Very 
few schools requested lead testing through this allowance for voluntary testing. 

Due to lack of participation, Assembly Bill 746 (Fletcher) was passed in 2017 and went into effect 
January 1, 2018. The bill requires public water agencies to test all of the public K-12 schools within 
its retail water service area before July 1, 2019. For Desert Water Agency (DWA), there are 7 sites 
that we plan to test. 

DWA is starting these tests on October 3 in coordination with the Riverside County Office of 
Education and Palm Springs Unified School District. We will conclude sampling by the end of the 
school year. DWA collects a map of each school site and determines 1-5 test locations for that 
campus. In addition to collecting the samples at the school, our personnel will also pull a sample at 
the meter to show the levels of lead in the water prior to the school’s private plumbing system. 

There is a stringent, unique sampling process that DWA operations technicians will administer. The 
samples will be sent to a lab that the Agency contracts with in the Riverside area. DWA will be 
required to share the test results with the district after receiving them from the lab. If water samples 
contained more than 15 parts per billion of lead, additional sampling may be needed. It is the district’s 
responsibility to communicate any violations to the parents though DWA would work closely with 
them to do so. 

Whitewater Hydro and SWP  Delivery  Update 

For the month of September, the Whitewater Hydro plant generated approximately 357,000 kWh, 
resulting in a SCE settlement amount of approximately $33,000.  

As of the end of August, MWD has delivered approximately 104,275 AC-FT to the Whitewater 
Spreading Basins, and 383 AC-FT to the Mission Creek Spreading Basins.  

MWD completed their meter repair work for the Mission Creek Spreading Basin outlet in mid-
September and began delivery water to the Mission Creek Spreading Basin on September 26. They 
will deliver at a rate of 25 CFS for approximately 30 days, with a total delivery amount of 
approximately 1,660 AC-FT.  

On October 1, MWD will stop their water deliveries to the Whitewater Spreading Basin. It is 
anticipated that water deliveries to the basin will not resume for the rest of 2018.       



STREET NAME NUMBER OF LEAKS

PIPE DIAMETER 

(INCHES) YEAR INSTALLED PIPE MATERIAL

PIPE 

CONSTRUCTION

LIVMOR AVE 3 4 1955 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

LOUELLA RD 3 6 1955 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

AVENIDA CABALLEROS 3 20 1949 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

ANDREAS RD 2 6 1958 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

MICHELLE RD 2 4 1956 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

CANYON PL 1 4 1939 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

HIGHLAND DR 1 4 1946 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

BROADMOOR DR 1 10 1958 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

LURING DR 1 4 1946 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

BILTMORE PL 1 4 1955 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

VISTA ORO 1 4 1958 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

LUGO RD 1 6 1954 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

RAMON RD 1 6 1955 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

PASEO ROSETA 1 4 1946 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

TAHQUITZ CANYON WY 1 8 1946 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

CANYON ROCK RD 1 4 1956 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

E PALM CANYON DR 1 6 1955 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

W LINDA VISTA RD 1 4 1951 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

DESERT WY 1 4 1946 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

TOTAL LEAKS IN SYSTEM: 27

* Streets highlighted in blue are being proposed as part of the

2018/2019 Replacement Pipeline Project

SYSTEM LEAK DATA

(PERIOD BEGINNING SEPTEMBER 12, 2018 THRU SEPTEMBER 25, 2018)

Page 3 of 5



Page 4 of 5



Page 5 of 5 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 

Meetings: 
09/19/18 DWA Performance Review Changes DWA 
09/21/18 Sites Reservoir Committee Maxwell 
09/24/18 Staff/I.S./Security DWA 
09/25/18 Building Access Security Protocols DWA 
09/25/18 Meeting with Assemblyman Mayes Rancho Mirage 
09/26/18 Executive Committee DWA 
09/26/18 SGP Sub-basin SGMA Meeting SGPWA 
09/27/18 All Valley Mayors/ACBCI Chairman Luncheon ACBCI 
09/28/18 Phillip Ball Active Shooter/Prevention/Response DWA 
09/28/18 CWF Weekly Update Conf. Call 
10/01/18 Staff/I.S./Security DWA 
10/01/18 Meeting with CVCAN DWA 
10/02/18 DWA Bi-Monthly Board Meeting DWA 

Activities: 

09/19/18 DWA Performance Review Changes DWA 
09/21/18 Sites Reservoir Committee Maxwell 
09/24/18 Staff/I.S./Security DWA 
09/25/18 Building Access Security Protocols DWA 
09/25/18 Meeting with Assemblyman Mayes Rancho Mirage 
09/26/18 Executive Committee DWA 
09/26/18 SGP Sub-basin SGMA Meeting SGPWA 
09/27/18 All Valley Mayors/ACBCI Chairman Luncheon ACBCI 
09/28/18 Phillip Ball Active Shooter/Prevention/Response DWA 
09/28/18 CWF Weekly Update Conf. Call 
10/01/18 Staff/I.S./Security DWA 
10/01/18 Meeting with CVCAN DWA 
10/02/18 DWA Bi-Monthly Board Meeting DWA 



5-A 
 

Minutes 
Executive Committee Meeting 

September 25, 2018 
   

 
Directors Present: Jim Cioffi, Joe Stuart     
Staff Present: Mark Krause, Martin Krieger, Steve Johnson, Ashley Metzger 
 
1. Discussion Items 

 
A. Review Agenda for October 2, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 

The proposed agenda for the October 2, 2018 meeting was reviewed. 
 
2.  Other - None 
     

 3. Adjourn 
 
 

























8-A 

01358.00002\31472411.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

September 24, 2018 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: SEPTEMBER 12, 2018 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The September 12, 2018 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Contractors, Inc. (SWC), was conducted at the offices of the SWC in downtown Sacramento. 

1. Action Items.  The Board of Directors approved a number of action items: 

• Winter-Run Salmon Study.  The Board approved a $90,000 consultant 

agreement to conduct a winter-run Chinook salmon acoustic telemetry analysis study.  This study 

will hopefully confirm that late-fall Chinook salmon are an appropriate surrogate for the 

endangered winter-run salmon.  Many studies use late-fall run as a surrogate for winter-run, and 

this study will review whether this is appropriate. 

• Toxicity Study.  The Board approved an agreement with UC Davis to 

conduct sampling and analysis for fish toxicity, for an amount up to $180,000.  The study will look 

at water quality in the Sacramento River and its effects on fish. 

• SFCWA Transfer.  The Board approved a transfer agreement between SWC 

and the State and Federal Contractors Water Agency (SFCWA) to accept the transfer of active 

SFCWA Science Program contracts and funding to allow for completion of work currently 

underway.  This follows up on a Board action from earlier this year that transferred some other in 

progress SFCWA contracts. 

• Salmon Entrainment App.  The Board authorized a $5,000 cost amendment 

for ICF to develop a “shiny” app for the previously developed salmon entrainment model.  This 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\31472411.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

app allows stakeholders to modify inputs in the model and see the effect on outputs without 

changing the underlying methodology.  Currently, staff must provide the entire model to 

stakeholders to allow them to modify inputs. 

• Annual Staff Salary Adjustments.  The Board approved a policy to annually 

budget and implement SWC staff salary adjustments, excluding the General Manager and General 

Counsel.  This policy creates a salary adjustment pool that can be allocated to staff by the General 

Manager as appropriate. 

• 2016-2017 Audit.  The Board approved the Fiscal Year 2016-17 Audit 

Report.  This included authorizing staff to contract with Nicholson & Olson, CPA’s for the next 

three years.  The Board indicated a preference for conducting a request for proposal once this 

three-year period expired. 

• Delta Smelt Workshop.  The Board approved an agreement with Compass 

Resource Management to hold a workshop at CSAMP to determine management questions for the 

delta smelt structured decision making, for an amount up to $25,000.  Cost sharing will be sought 

from Coalition for a Sustainable Delta and/or San Luis Delta-Mendota Water Authority. 

2. Water Operations Report.  Molly White from DWR provided a report on 

SWP water operations.  Generally, reservoir levels are at or above their historical averages for this 

time of year.  For example, San Luis Reservoir is at 50% capacity (116% of its historical average 

for this time of year).  This is consistent with Central Valley Project facilities.  For example, Don 

Pedro Reservoir is at 77% capacity (110% of its historical average).  The one exception to this 

general trend is Lake Oroville.  It is at 43% capacity, which is only 66% of its historical average. 

Ms. White also noted that demand has been relatively low recently but is expected 

to increase in September and October.  This is consistent with historical averages.  Lastly, Ms. 

White discussed Lake Perris.  The lake is currently undergoing a riparian restoration project that 

should be completed in October.  Once completed DWR will begin to fill the lake and should 

finish doing so in late December or early January. 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\31472411.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

3. Water Quality Report.  Tanya Veldhuizen from DWR provided an overview 

of current water quality conditions.  There were no major concerns or noteworthy items. 

4. Legislative Report.  SWC General Counsel Stefanie Morris provided the 

legislative report.  With the recent conclusion of the legislative session, Ms. Morris provided an 

overview of noteworthy legislation that did and did not receive approval.  First, AB 747 was 

approved by the Legislature and presented to the Governor.  If signed, it will create an 

administrative hearings office within the State Water Resources Control Board.  This office will 

include attorneys responsible for conducting administrative hearings regarding water rights 

matters.  Second, AB 2649 was not enacted by the Legislature before the conclusion of the session.   

This bill would have required DWR to provide at least ten days’ notice to relevant 

legislative committees before holding any public session to negotiate an amendment to long-term 

water supply contracts.  DWR also would have been required to provide advance notice prior to 

approving any amendments.  This bill was being driven by opponents of Cal WaterFix, and a 

similar or even stronger bill may be introduced next session. 

Third, SB 100 was approved by the Legislature and signed by the Governor.  It 

increases existing renewable energy requirements.  Relevant to SWC, it requires the SWP to be 

carbon-free by 2045.  This is expected to result in increased power costs for DWR.   

Fourth, SB 955 has been approved by the Legislature and signed by the Governor.  

This bill creates a Citizens Advisory Commission for the Oroville Dam within the Natural 

Resources Agency.  This commission includes members of affected local agencies and will 

function as a mechanism for input and feedback. 

5. General Manager’s Report.   

General Manager Jennifer Pierre provided an update on various matters.  Of note, 

Ms. Pierre reported that the SWC had hired a new science manager.  This is part of the increasing 

importance of overseeing and developing studies on SWC operations.  Ms. Pierre also provided 

an update on the nutria situation.  There is significant concern that nutria may enter the Delta and 

affect levees.  They are very destructive and burrow into levees, weakening them.  The California 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\31472411.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Department of Fish and Wildlife is conducting an eradication program, and the closest sighting to 

the Delta is Manteca.  Lastly, Ms. Pierre provided an overview of the recent legislative cycle.  It 

is likely that additional Cal WaterFix bills will be introduced when the Legislature re-convenes 

this winter. 

6. Business Processes Objectives Update.   

Theresa Lightle and Julie Ramsay provided a presentation on SWC’s business 

processes objectives and DWR’s financial management enhancement program.  This program 

began earlier this year and is expected to be completed in 2021.  The program is focused on 

improving transparency and accuracy in SWP financial estimations and reporting.  As an example, 

Ms. Lightle provided an in-depth report on recent volatility for some Contractors in the 

transportation minimum charges in 2017-2019.  Overall, while SWP-wide charges were relatively 

stable, there was significant volatility between regions.  For example, North and South Bay 

Contractors saw a one-year decrease in 2018 before charges returned in prior levels in 2019.  

Central Coast Contractors saw flat charges in 2017 and 2018 before a large spike in 2019.  Ms. 

Lightle noted that the financial management enhancement program may provide an opportunity to 

improve DWR processes to mitigate or at least forecast these types of cost spikes. 

JOSH NELSON 



Agenda Item 5a 

Trinity Storage 

1.54 MAF 

Shasta Storage 

2.59 MAF 

Keswick Release 

8,500 cfs 

to 

O Oroville Storage 

1.51 MAF 

3 Oroville 
o Releases 

6,000 cfs 

Naw Bay Aquoduct 

Net Delta Outfbw 
5,700 cfs 

Folsom Storage 

0.49 MAF 

Nimbus 

Release 

1,800 cfs 

Freeport 

17,540 efs 

Clifton Court 6,000 cfs 

Jones PP 4,250 cfs 

Vemalls 759 cfs 

San Luis: 
SWP 0.67 MA 

CVP 0.36 MAF 

Total 1 03 MAF 

River 

State Water Contractors Board 
Meeting 

September 12, 2018 

New Melones Storage 

1.81 MAF 

Pyramid 

Castaic 
Severwood 

Perris 

AIN 

Southern Reservoirs Storage 

0.64 MAF 

Data compiled on: 

9/11/2018 



North Sierra Precipitation: 8-Station Index, September 11, 2018 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 D

a
il
y
/M

o
n
th

ly
 P

re
c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (
in

c
h

e
s
) 

100 

95 

90 

85 

80 

75 

70 

65' 

60 

55 

50 

45 

40 

35 

30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

Mount Shasta City 
Shasta Dam 
Mineral 

Quincy 
Brush Creek 

Y,--Sierraville RS 
4. .41; -• Blue Canyon 

Pacific House 

Oct 1 Nov 

Percent of Average for this Date: 80% 

 94.7 

2016-2017 Daily Precip (wettest) 

1982-1983 (2nd wettest)  88.5 

1997-1998 82.4 

Average (1966-2015) 

Current Daily Precip/ 

51.8 

40.9 

2014-2015 Daily Precip 37.2

1976-1977(2nd driest & driest thrL>l eig 19.0 

Dec 1 Jan 1 Feb 1 Mar 1 Apr 1 May 1 Jun 1 Jul 1 Aug 1 Sep 1 Oct 1 

Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 

T
o
ta

l 
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r 
P

re
c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 



San Joaquin Precipitation: 5-Station Index, September 11, 2018 
90 

85.

80 -

75.

0C 60 

a55 

• 50 

r45 

240 

-5, 
73 35 

> • 30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 
Oct 1 Nov 1 

Calaveras Big Trees 

Hetch Hetchy 

Yosemite Headquarters 

North Fork RS 

Huntington Lake 

Dec 1 Jan 1 

Percent of Average for this Date: 75% 

1982-1983 (wettest) 

ally Precip (2nd wettest) 

77.4 

72.7 

1997-1998 
65.2 

Average (1966-2015) 

Current Daily Precip 

40.2 

/ 29.7 

2014-2015 Daily Precip 
  19.0 

  15.4 

1976-1977(2nd driest & driest thru Aug) 

Feb 1 Mar 1 Apr 1 May 1 Jun 1 

Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 

Jul 1 Aug 1 Sep 1 Oct 1 

T
o

ta
l 
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r 
P

re
c
ip

it
a
ti
o
n
 



Tulare Basin Precipitation: 6-Station Index, September 11, 2018 
70 

65 -

60 

55 .

U,

.c 
o 50 

o 4 5

co 

E. 
'5 40 

et. 
>.

35 .c 

-30 

O 
a 25 

co 

• 20 
z 

15 

10 

5 

0 
Oct 1 Nov 1 

Balch PH 

Giant Forest 

Ash Mt. 

Springville. 
Pascoes 

Isabella Dam 

Dec 1 Jan 1 

Percent of Average for this Date: 63% 

1968-1969 (Wettest) 

1997-1998 (2nd wettest) 

56.3 

54.2 

46.9 

2016-2017 Daily Precip 

Average (1966-2015) 

Current Daily Precip/ 

28.8 

17.9 

2014-2015 Daily Precip 
13.5 

10.9 

1976-1977 Daily Precip (Driest) 

Feb 1 Mar 1 Apr 1 May 1 Jun 1 

Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 

Jul 1 Aug 1 Sep 1 Oct 1 

T
o

ta
l 
W

a
te

r 
Y

e
a

r 
P

re
c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 



Ending At Midnight - September 26, 2018

Graph Updated 09/27/2018 11:18 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
62% | 89%

Lake Shasta
54% | 89%

Lake Oroville
39% | 63%

Folsom Lake
48% | 84%

New Melones Lake
74% | 133%

Don Pedro Reservoir
75% | 110%

Lake McClure
61% | 131%

San Luis Reservoir
54% | 118%

Millerton Lake
53% | 129%

Lake Perris
78% | 102%

Castaic Lake
87% | 109%

Pine Flat Reservoir
23% | 66%



























 

X:\Kim\Outreach & Conservation Information\O & C 2018\O & C Activities 2018\09 2018 OC Activities.doc 

9-B 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

 
OUTREACH & CONSERVATION 

ACTIVITIES 
 

September 2018 
Activities: 
 

9/01  President Cioffi, Mark Krause and Ashley Metzger attended the Desert Hot Springs 
Neighborhood Group monthly breakfast. 

 
9/05  Mark Krause and Ashley Metzger attended a Legislative Breakfast with 

Assemblymembers Eduardo Garcia and Chad Mayes. 
 

9/05  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ about DWA’s partnership with the 
Palm Springs Public Library. 

 
9/05  Ashley Metzger attended the Palm Springs Chamber of Commerce mixer at the Palm 

Springs Aerial Tramway 
 

9/06  Mark Krause and Ashley Metzger attended the Palm Springs State of the City 
luncheon. 

 
9/07  Ashley Metzger attended Urban Water Conservation and Drought Planning session at 

Metropolitan Water District. 
 

9/08  Ashley Metzger and Vicki Petek staffed a table and provided water and information at 
the Palm Springs Farmer’s Market. 

 
9/09 - 9/11  President Cioffi, Vice President Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer and staff 

attended the State Water Project tour. 
 

9/12  Ashley Metzger and Xochitl Peña gave a presentation to the residents of Palm 
Springs Pointe Apartments. 

 
9/12  President Cioffi and Ashley Metzger met with Supervisor V. Manuel Perez. 

 
9/13  Ashley Metzger and Xochitl Peña attended the ONE-PS meeting and provided an 

update. 
 

9/13  Vicki Petek and Eddie Gonzalez conducted a water audit for Ridgeview Homeowners 
Association. 

 
9/13  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ about the State Water Project tour. 

 
9/17  Ashley Metzger and Heather Marcks attended a Water Loss Performance Standards 

seminar at Metropolitan Water District. 
 

9/20  Ashley Metzger and Xochitl Peña gave a presentation to the residents of the Pacifica 
Senior Apartments. 



 

X:\Kim\Outreach & Conservation Information\O & C 2018\O & C Activities 2018\09 2018 OC Activities.doc 

Outreach & Conservation Activities 
September 2018 

Page 2 
 
 

9/20  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ about National Preparedness 
Month. 

 
9/21  President Cioffi and Ashley Metzger met with Senator Jeff Stone. 

 
9/25  Ashley Metzger attended and presented at the HOA Presidents’ Council meeting at 

Four Seasons’ clubhouse. 
 

9/25  President Cioffi, Mark Krause and Ashley Metzger met with Assemblymember Chad 
Mayes. 

 
9/26  Ashley Metzger attended the Desert Hot Springs Agua Warriors meeting. 

 
9/27  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ about overseeding. 

 
 
Public Information Releases/eBlasts/Customer notifications:     
 September 4: #H20reads: Public agencies partner to feature books about water and quench the thirst 
 for a good read – press release 
September 6:  Racquet Club Road construction underway – website, Nextdoor  

September 19:  Pueblo Sands water outage Monday (9/24) 9:00a-2:00p – Nextdoor 
September 20:  HOA Presidents Council meeting notification – eBlast to HOAs 
 

 

Upcoming Events 

 October 02, 5:00 to 8:00 –  DWA at PSPD National Night Out @ Sunrise Park Stadium 
October 05, 10:00 to 2:00 – DWA at Senior Lifestyle Expo @ Mizell Senior Center 
October 10, 9:00 to 10:30 – MSWD Solar Switch Flip in Desert Hot Springs 
October 16, 5:00 to 9:00 –  DWA at PS Chamber Business Expo & Taste of PS @ Colony 29 
October 20, 7:00 to 12:00 –  DWA at Desert AIDS Walk @ Ruth Hardy Park 
October 24, 8:00 to 11:20  – AWWA tour of DWA facilities 
October 27, 10:00 to 6:00 –  CV Water Counts at Desert Garden Community Day @ UCR Palm Desert 
October 28, 11:00 to 6:00 – DWA OktoberPets @ Palm Springs Animal Shelter 
 



DWA main site

All Web Site Data GO TO REPORT

Language Users % Users

1. en-us 3,419 95.64%

2. en-ca 31 0.87%

3. en-gb 26 0.73%

4. es-xl 9 0.25%

5. fi-fi 8 0.22%

6. fr 8 0.22%

7. ko 8 0.22%

8. es-419 7 0.20%

9. es-us 7 0.20%

10. en 5 0.14%

Audience Overview

Sep 1, 2018 - Sep 27, 2018

Overview

 Users

… Sep 8 Sep 15 Sep 22

150150

300300

Users

3,574
New Users

2,895
Sessions

4,542

Number of Sessions per User

1.27
Pageviews

10,327
Pages / Session

2.27

Avg. Session Duration

00:01:49
Bounce Rate

47.31%

New Visitor Returning Visitor

25.6%

74.4%

© 2018 Google

All Users
100.00% Users

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#/report/visitors-overview/a90622633w134355996p138504838/_u.date00=20180901&_u.date01=20180927


 
 

 

 

Desert Water Agency  
Facebook Analytics 

September 2018 



 

 



 

 



 

                  19 likes                                  20 likes, 1 comment                29 likes, 2 comments 

              19 likes                                          22 likes                                        19 likes 

               13 likes                                           23 likes                                                      15 likes  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Desert Water Agency  
Twitter Analytics 
September 2018 

 

 


	100218 Board Agenda
	Item 2 New Employees
	Item 3 091818 Board Minutes
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 4 100218 GM Report
	OCTOBER 2, 2018

	Item 5A 092518 Exec Comm
	Item 7 100218 Aug Treasurers Rpt
	Item 8A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SEPT 12 2018 BOARD MEETING (DWA)-c2
	MEMORANDUM

	Item 9A 100218 O&C Media
	Item 9B 100218 O&C Activities

